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General Proposal Window Questions and Answers

[bookmark: _GoBack]Prequalification for developers
Do proposers need to be prequalified to submit proposals and be designated? (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
While not a requirement to propose competitive projects, an entity must obtain Designated Entity status in order to construct, own, operate, maintain and finance competitive planning projects.

Is there still time to pre-qualify? 
Interested parties should submit their application as soon as possible and PJM will exercise best efforts to process.

How do I apply for prequalification status? 
See the PJM Competitive Planning webpage.

Proposal Window materials

Where are the materials posted?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
All materials for this proposal window are posted on the PJM Competitive Planning Process web page.
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What materials are posted?

· Overview document and Problem Statements for Options 1a, 1b, 2 and 3
· BPU OSW Transmission Proposal Data Collection Form
· Redacted version of New Jersey OSW Phase 2 Results
· Market Efficiency models
· Reliability models and supporting analytical files and results
· 2020 Series 2028 RTEP summer, winter and light load power flow cases with NJ OSW dispatched and related study files 
· 15 year load forecast for long-term deliverability analysis
· Applicable short circuit and stability model and related study files without the NJ OSW modelled
· 2020 Series 2028 RTEP summer load deliverability files and related study files
· Reliability violations for 2028 and 2035 for the default set of POIs for the generator deliverability tests 


Are the Proposal Window Overview and Problem Statement documents only available to pre-qualified entities?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
There is a “Without Analytical Files” attachment in the Competitive Planning Process web page that contains these and other materials that are publicly available.

How frequently and when will updates to the posted materials be made?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM has been collecting miscellaneous corrections, clarifications and other feedback related to the posted material and plans to post updated materials by mid-May.  PJM will then post further updates as necessary.  Any updates will be communicated to the individuals listed on the PJM PC and TEAC roster. Entities can request to be added to the roster on the PC and TEAC committee pages on PJM.com.  

Interested parties can contact PJM Member Relations at the following:
https://www.pjm.com/about-pjm/who-we-are/contact-us.aspx
custsvc@pjm.com
(610-666-8980
(866) 400-8980

What is the purpose of the BPU Supplemental OSW Transmission Proposal Data Collection Form?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
The purpose of this form is to collect data for the NJBPU evaluation of proposals beyond the data supplied to PJM via the Competitive Planner tool and will assist the BPU in considering the total benefits of the proposals for New Jersey customers.  

Are there any word limits in the BPU Supplemental OSW Transmission Proposal Data Collection Form and how should it be submitted?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
There are no word limit restrictions in the form, but participants are encouraged to be concise in their responses. The form can be submitted via the PJM Competitive Planning tool as a zip file attachment to the proposal submission.

A complete transmission solution may consist of the combination of Option 1A, Option 1B, and Option 2 proposals. It is clear that separate Competitive Transmission Planner submissions are necessary for these different options. But can the same NJBPU Supplemental Data Collection Form be used across these different options constituting a complete transmission solution (i.e. Option 1A, Option 1B, and Option 2 proposals)? Or is a separate specific supplemental data form required for each option bid package?
A separate supplemental form should be provided for each option submitted.

What unique assumptions regarding the NJ OSW did PJM make when preparing these files and performing the reliability analysis for the default set of POIs?
PJM used the 2028 steady-state power flow models from the 2020 RTEP to perform a set of generator deliverability studies of the default POIs and injection amounts.  PJM modeled a total of 7,648 MW of NJ OSW.  6,400 MW was modelled at the default POIs and the remaining solicitation #1 was modelled at the BL England 138 kV POI and the Oyster Creek POIs.  An expected set of upgrades was included in the models for solicitation #1.  

As shown in the table below, PJM dispatched the NJ OSW in the base cases used to perform the reliability studies at 30% of the MFO in the summer period and 60% of the MFO in the winter and light load periods.  The table also provides the ramping limits that were used for the NJ OSW units in the various generator deliverability tests. 

	Generator Deliverability Requirements For New Jersey Offshore Wind Units

	
	
	
	

	Season
	Contingency Type
	Base Case Dispatch*
	Ramping Limit*

	Summer
	Single
	30%
	30%

	Winter
	Single
	60%
	80%

	Light Load
	Single
	60%
	80%

	Summer
	Common Mode
	30%
	100%

	Winter
	Common Mode
	60%
	100%

	Light Load
	Common Mode
	60%
	80%

	* Expressed as % of Maximum Facility Output (MFO)
	



To accommodate the NJ OSW, the remainder of PJM online generation was dispatched down uniformly.  The NJ OSW units were the only new generators added to the model beyond the planned units included in the 2020 RTEP base cases. 

The power factor of the NJ OSW units was set at 0.95 lagging and 0.95 leading.  Voltage schedules for the OSW POIs were selected based on voltage levels in the power flow model under normal system conditions.

Generator deliverability analysis was performed under both single and common mode contingencies for the 2028 summer, winter and light load period.  Long-term deliverability analysis was also performed to consider the impact of PJM load growth through 2035.  These two sets of analysis were used as the basis of the posted reliability violations.   

In addition to generator deliverability, a full set of all reliability studies will be used in the evaluation of proposals.

Should the window participants make these same assumptions and are there any different or additional assumptions they should consider?
See the section below on the Project Evaluation in this document, the separate technical FAQ documents and the Overview and Problem Statements supplied with the window materials.

For generator deliverability, what incremental upgrades will PJM include associated with solicitation 2? 
PJM will not include any incremental upgrades associated with Solicitation #2.  NJBPU has recently requested that window participants submit proposals to satisfy the Option 1a requirements for Solicitation #2.  However, PJM and NJBPU reserve the right to not select some or all of the Option 1a upgrades proposed for Solicitation #2 for consideration under the SAA.

Ocean Wind II: BPU Order Docket NO. QO21050825 states that Board approved 1,148 MW for OW2. Also, the Deans 500 kV substation (Primary) and Smithburg 500 kV substation (secondary) have been identified as potential POIs. For the updated models, please specify the selected substation and the amount that will be modeled in the study cases.  Atlantic Shores Offshore Wind Project 1: BPU Order Docket NO. QO21050824 states that Board approved 1,509.6 MW for ASOW. Also, the Cardiff 230 kV substation has been identified as the POI. For the updated models, please confirm the substation and the amount that will be modeled in the study cases.  
Solicitation #2 awarded 1,510 MW at the Cardiff 230 kV POI and 1,148 MW at the Smithburg 500 kV POI.  After discussions with the NJBPU, PJM will model 1,510 MW at the Cardiff 230 kV POI and 1,148 MW at the Smithburg 500 kV POI in the final updated power flow models for this window.


Proposals

Can proposing entities submit proposals for alternative POIs and injection amounts?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
Yes.  If a proposing entity chooses to submit a proposal for alternative POIs and injection amounts they must indicate so in the proposal submission.  The NJBPU encourages participants to submit proposals that avoid costly upgrades to address reliability violations.   However, the goal of seeking transmission proposals to support the full 7,500 MW is still the primary objective of this window.  PJM must receive a complete set of proposals that resolves all system needs associated with the submitted POIs in order for an alternative set of POIs and injection amounts to be considered. 

If we propose an alternative set of injections from the SAA scenario amounts with a different injection level, do we need to identify all the violations that occur across New Jersey or just the overloads within the zone of the alternative injection?  If new overloads are identified outside of the zone, do we need to estimate the costs for those solutions even if we don’t plan to build those upgrades?  Additionally, if we propose an alternative injection level, say 2,000 MW, do we need to identify the POIs for the remaining 4,500 MW?  
Each proposal that is not based on the default POIs and injection amounts must specify the complete set of POIs and injection amounts the proposal is based on.   PJM does not intend to optimize the POIs and injection amounts received.  We will however be attempting to select the best set of proposals we receive for each complete set of POIs and injection amounts that participants submit along with a valid proposal.   PJM highly recommends that for proposals that not based on the default POIs and injection amounts that participants perform a full investigation of all evaluation criteria to ensure that nothing has been missed because you may be the only participant that submits proposals for the alternative set of POIs and/or injection amounts.  Ultimately, PJM/NJBPU will not select a set of alternative POIs and/or injection amounts if there is no complete solution that can be pieced together from the submitted proposals.

One more question for you regarding what’s considered a “complete solution”.  Suppose we propose an Option 1a for the default set of POIs and injection amounts; do we need to supply a corresponding Option 1b/Option 2 proposal?  If we just propose a Option 1a proposal alone with no Option 1b/Option 2, will that be considered complete and sufficient by PJM and the BPU?  Also, would the situation be any different if the proposed an Option 1a is for an alternative POI / injection amount?  Would a corresponding Option 1b proposal be required for that alternative injection level?
If a window participant only wants to supply a proposal to address some of the needs associated with the default POI / injection amount then they can assume that other entities will provide proposals to form a complete solution package.  In the latter situation you will be submitting a proposal for an alternative set of POIs / injection amounts that you will specify in your proposal.  If you submit proposals to address only some of the needs for this alternative then you run the risk that no other participant will provide a set complementary proposals to form a complete solution package for this alternative.  For alternatives where only a limited number of proposals are submitted, PJM will attempt to pull from the pool of all submitted proposals in the window to form a complete solution package for that alternative.  However, PJM reserves the right to dismiss alternatives, especially those that are very different than the default, where it is not obvious which proposals can be combined to form this complete solution package, i.e. we don’t want to encourage participants who are submitting alternatives to over rely on PJM’s engineering expertise to make their alternative work.

Can a proposing entity submit proposals for only particular options, e.g. option 1a only?
Yes, separate proposals should be submitted to address
· One or more set of common reliability violations for option 1a – similar to a typical RTEP window
· The offshore substation and the necessary transmission facilities to connect it to a particular POI for option 1b and/or 2
· Transmission facilities to connect one or more offshore substations for option 3

Does a proposing entity need to submit a comprehensive set of proposals for each option, i.e. can they simply submit a proposal to address one of the option 1a reliability violations?
See previous answer. Any linked proposals or those with contingencies (i.e. price or other benefits of selecting multiple options from one developer) should be clearly identified in the proposal submission.

What type of information related to each option do proposals that only consider a single option need to provide as part of the proposal, e.g. for proposals for option 1a only do they need to supply the MW injection and locations assumed along with all option 1b, option 2 and option 3 assumptions?
Proposal submissions should clearly describe the assumptions that were used to evaluate the proposal and provide the associated modeling information along with the technical analysis files.  PJM anticipates that proposal submissions will have varying levels of detail in their assumptions.  For example, some proposals may only consider the same default assumptions that PJM supplied in the posted window material.  Other proposals may modify these default assumptions considerably and add an extensive amounts of detail.  Regardless, PJM will need to ensure that all system needs and evaluation criteria are addressed when evaluating the proposals.

What year should the cost of the proposals be in?  In-service dollars or present dollars?
Project costs for proposals must be at a minimum provided in current-year dollars.  Proposers may include additional project cost information to support their proposal.  Proposers should provide the yearly cash flow and assumed escalation rates for costs that are provided in in-service year dollars.   

If a proposal only meets a portion of Option 1a, 1b, 2 or 3, is that considered non-compliant and will not be accepted? Will proposal fees be refunded if not accepted?
PJM and the NJBPU may combine individual proposals and conceivably parts of individual proposals together with other proposals in order to achieve a combination of proposals that best addresses all evaluation criteria that will ultimately need to be satisfied through this proposal window.  Any severability, linkages, or contingencies to other proposals or other options must be specified in the proposal submission description and can be described in more detail in the BPU Supplemental Data Collection Form. PJM and the NJBPU reserve the right to take this information into account, along with any partial, incomplete, or combinations of proposed solutions.  Non-refundable deposits will not be refunded for proposals submitted in this window pursuant to OA Schedule 6, Section 1.5.8 (c).

If a transmission developer proposes an independent solution under Option 1a, 1b, 2 and 3 is a separate NJ BPU Supplemental form required for each project segment?
A separate NJBPU Supplemental Data Collection Form is required for each proposal.

If a bidder is seeking to submit an Option 1a proposal, 
a. Must the bid cover all of the identified network upgrades associated with the overall 7.5 GW of injection?  
No, but any linkages to other proposals must be clearly identified in the proposal submission.
b. Can the bidder submit an Option 1a proposal for only a portion of the POIs?
Yes. The proposed alternate POI or reduced injection amounts associated with the proposal should be clearly described. PJM and the NJBPU are seeking Option 1a proposals that will fully solve all violations associated with either default or alternate specified POIs or injection amounts.  
c. If the bidder proposes an alternate set of POIs, can the bidder submit an Option 1a proposal for only a portion of the total 7.5GW?  How will PJM and the NJBPU combine such modifications with other proposals?
Yes, per response to part b.  Each proposal submission that is associated with a complete set of alternative POIs should clearly state the alternative injection locations and amounts.  PJM and the NJBPU will use their discretion whether and how to combine such proposals in order to achieve the best overall solution package. 

If PJM finds that a submitted proposal doesn’t fit into a particular Option, will PJM adjust the Option that the proposal is intended to meet?
PJM and the NJBPU understand that in some cases it may be unclear as to which option a proposal should be associated with and will take that into consideration when reviewing the proposals.  Proposing entities are encouraged to submit proposals that they believe will satisfy the evaluation criteria and respond to the problem statement option that best fits the need. 

What if there is no shore substation required for Option 1b?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM would prefer such proposals to be submitted under Option 2, but will accept Option 1b proposals without shore substations if there is a clear linkage specified in the proposal submission to an Option 2 proposal.

Is Option 1a just an upgrade of existing infrastructure?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
Option 1a proposals are required to address the entire set of reliability violations for default or alternate proposed POIs on the existing and planned infrastructure and may include upgrading existing infrastructure, for which the incumbent transmission owner will be responsible, as well as new greenfield solutions which will be selected through the competitive process. 

If my company is already prequalified what addition information about my company do I need to submit along with my proposal in order to fully satisfy the deliverable requirements?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)

Please supply any additional information specific to your proposal that is necessary to assure PJM and the NJBPU that your company is able to satisfy the unique needs of this proposal including but not limited to the actual entity that will be engineering, designing, constructing and financing the projects and the financial information supporting the ability to meet any cost commitment that may be included. 

Does the company that ultimately construct, own, operate, maintain, and finance the project need to be a PJM Member of Affiliate with a Transmission Owner sector designation?

The requirements to be a Designated Entity are identified in the Operating Agreement, Schedule 6, section 1.5.8(a). In essence, from the membership perspective, they would need to be able to execute the CTOA, and therefore be a member, but that is not required as part of the pre-qualification and proposal portion of the process.

If an entity submits a proposal for a project company that will be formed after the project is awarded as well as another qualified registrant and describes that in the response, will that qualify as a bid that can be awarded?  Or does the company need to be created first, qualified and be the bidding entity?   
A pre-qualified entity, including its affiliates, that is designated to construct a project, may determine the need to form a new affiliate that meets all the requirements to be a Designated Entity under PJM rules and assign the project to that affiliate, subject to the terms of Article 11 of the Designated Entity Agreement (DEA).   If the intent is to form a new affiliate or partnership upon designation, it is advisable to include that information in sufficient detail in the proposal submittal for PJM to consider the company evaluation as part of the overall proposal evaluation.  

If an entity is designated to construct a project and, post-award, seeks to bring another entity into the project as an owner, would PJM need to review and approve the new entity’s interest in the project?  
Yes.  If the Designated Entity is seeking to change its pre-qualification status, which may include a partnership or co-ownership, then the entity (and its partner or co-owner) is required to update and/or submit the pre-qualification application and also would be subject to the terms of Article 11 of the DEA.

If an entity has submitted a request for pre-qualification status but the review is not complete by the window close date, can an entity still submit a proposal and be eligible for designation.  
PJM will exercise best efforts to complete the review of the pre-qualification submittal in a timely manner and will consider the proposal for designation to the proposing entity, subject to the entity meeting the requirements in the OA to be pre-qualified under Schedule 6 Section 1.5.8. 

In the document PJM RTEP – 2021 NJ Offshore Wind SAA Transmission Proposal Window Overview, can PJM verify that a solution  consisting of an HVDC offshore converter platform, HVDC submarine cable, HVDC onshore cable, HVDC onshore converter station and AC cable to the default or alternate POI would be considered an Option 1b/2 or just an Option 2 as described in the Option 2 problem statement which includes new offshore substation(s), which will interconnect with the new Option 1b proposed onshore substation or, a default or alternative POI where new onshore substations are not needed. Stated otherwise would the onshore converter station be considered a new onshore substation? 
PJM recommends that unless there is a new onshore substation near the shoreline that is constructed specifically to transition from offshore to onshore that such proposals be submitted under the Option 2 problem statement.

It is stated in the document PJM RTEP - 2021 NJ Offshore Wind SAA Transmission Proposal Window Overview “the overall scope of work comprises the full buildout of onshore and offshore transmission needed to reliably and efficiently interconnect up to 7,500 MW of offshore wind generation, which is projected to be placed in service between 2024 and 2035”. Can PJM clarify that developers are or are not required for a full build out and can propose solutions less than the full buildout or what is remaining from solicitation 1 & 2?
Yes, the NJBPU encourages participants to consider reductions in the total injection amounts that could reduce the overall cost through the elimination of potentially expensive transmission requirements. 
For proposed solutions consisting of an HVDC link from offshore to onshore including HVDC offshore converter platform, HVDC submarine cable, HVDC onshore cable, onshore HVDC converter station and a subsequent AC connection to the default POI with the default capacity, which "Project Components" as listed in the Competitive Planner are considered applicable? In other words are the "Project Components" listed in the Competitive Planner applicable to Option-2 solutions of this nature or are those only applicable to options 1a and 1b? To provide an example, two of the "Project Components" are Greenfield Transmission Line Component and a Greenfield Substation Component, based on the above explained HVDC solution, is it correct to assume that the HVDC submarine and onshore cable are attributed to the Greenfield Transmission Line Component and the offshore and onshore HVDC converter stations are attributed to the Greenfield Substation Component?
For greenfield substations, whether HVDC converter stations, conventional onshore or offshore stations, proposers should use the greenfield substation components form.  For transmission lines, whether, submarine, underground or overhead, proposers should use the greenfield transmission line form.  Where the construction type changes, such as submarine to overhead, the submarine portion should be in one form and the overhead in another form.

Can you please clarify or explain how bidders should submit the BPU Supplemental SAA Bid Data Collection Document? Is this supposed to be uploaded through the Competitive Planner? If yes can you provide direction on where specifically this should be uploaded?
The form can be submitted via the PJM Competitive Planning tool as a zip file attachment to the proposal submission. Please include the document in the file(s) submitted through the “Project Analysis Attachments” file upload point of the Supporting Documents section of the General Information tab of the Competitive Planner tool.

In each Problem Statement, PJM writes, “The PJM Competitive Planner Tool is used for proposal(s) submittal and captures project details, such as the criteria violations or system constraints that are being targeted by the proposed solution, the overall and specific project descriptions and the details of cost commitment, if included.“ Are respondents able to append files to each section of Competitive Planner in order to provide responsive information that exceeds the default character limit?
PJM expanded character limit based on prior proposal windows.  If needed, proposers can send attachments as described above.

The Company Evaluation and Operations and Maintenance Information section of each Problem Statement instructs “proposers seeking Designated Entity status” to  “provide additional information which will aid PJM in understanding how the proposed solution will be developed, constructed, operated and maintained. Include this information in the PJM Competitive Planner Tool.” Can PJM provide guidance regarding where this information should be uploaded into Competitive Planner for each submission? Are there additional or different instructions for entities who are currently Prequalified Designated Entities?
Participants are able to provide responsive information into the Competitive Planner Tool that exceeds the default character limit and are also able to send attachments as described above.

Following the submission deadline, will bidders have the opportunity to provide supplemental information to PJM regarding aspects of a bid? For example, if permits are acquired post submission, could that information be added to the application? Or will additional information only be permitted at the request of PJM through the evaluation process?
 After the close of the window additional information will only be permitted at the request of PJM.

In the Competitive Planner tool, it is understood that respondents are instructed to provide capital expenditure (CapEx) information via the Financial Information template and to provide binding cap on CapEx information in the Cost Containment Commitment section. Is there a field where respondents should provide operational expenditure (OpEx) information, either in the Financial Information template, Cost Containment Commitment section, or via any of the other Supporting Document upload sections?

Please include a document in the file(s) submitted through the “Capital Expenditure Documents” file upload point of the Financial Information tab of the Competitive Planner tool. As with other upload locations, submission of multiple files at a single upload location should be accomplished through the inclusion of the multiple files in a zip file prior to uploading.

According to the “OSW Proposal Window Overview” PJM is not currently accepting proposals for any reliability violations below 230kV, as well as substation equipment upgrades.

If a proposed solution to 1A violation would create an overload that is below 230kV, or breakers upgrade due to short circuit violation:
1. Do we need to submit an addition proposal to address the new violations (with full cost estimate)? 
1. Will it be any different if the new violations are in our territory or outside?
1. If an additional proposal is required, will the cost estimate of the original 1A violation include the cost estimate of the new violations?

In order for PJM to accept a proposal and consider it complete, a proposal must not only identify all reliability violations that are caused by the proposal but also be accompanied by an estimate of the associated upgrade requirements and cost.  

In order to provide information per the NJ BPU’s Supplemental SAA bid data collection document, section “Additional New Jersey benefits”, under the “creation of valuable transmission-related rights”, can PJM confirm the party responsible for developing any transmission project selected through the NJ BPU SAA process (options such as 1A, 1B, 2 or 3) would be classified as a Transmission Interconnection Customer per the last qualification of Manual 14A Section 1.3.2?  Would 1A, 1B, 2 or 3 transmission options be eligible for ICTRs and/or IARRs?    The term Transmission Interconnection Customer will not apply to the party responsible for developing transmission projects through the NJ BPU SAA process.  These transmission projects will be considered Required Transmission Enhancements (aka RTEP baseline upgrades) and as such may be eligible for ICTRs and IARRs per Schedule 12-A of the PJM tariff.
Do the transmission proposals for Options 1A, 1B, 2 and/or 3 require a Transmission Interconnection Services Agreement?  No. The Designated Entity selected for construction responsibility for an SAA RTEP project will be required to execute a Designated Entity Agreement, if appropriate, for the project and also will be required to execute the Consolidated Transmission Owners Agreement if the entity is not already a signatory as a PJM Transmission Owner.

Do any of the answers to these questions change if the project is addressing problem statement 1A vs 1B vs 2 vs 3?  For example, how would a project addressing the Peach Bottom-Conastone (Problem Statement 1) be treated differently, if at all, compared to an offshore-to-onshore project (Problem Statement 2)?  It is difficult to respond to this question as there may be nuances to specific situations we may not now contemplate. Specific questions and situations would need to be considered to ensure that responses to the individual questions already provided would not be altered if the questions were to a specific option of the proposals (Option 1A, 1B, 2, or 3) when the original question was directed to a single option. 

The NJBPU will accept proposals that shift some or all of the Solicitation 2 generation to other POIs as part of the objective to cost-effectively achieve NJ’s goal of up to 7,500 MW of OSW generation”. 
· With the above statement in mind, can PJM provide guidance on the rest of the offshore wind injection amount.  
· Should the remaining injection amount be 7500 MW – 1100 MW (solicitation#1 MW listed in Table 1 of the document) – 2400 MW (solicitation#2 MW listed in Table 1 of the document) = 4000 MW 
OR 
· Should the remaining injection amount be 7500 MW – 1248 MW (solicitation#1 MW as modeled in the power flow cases, 432MW at BL England and 816MW at Oyster Creek) – 2658 MW (solicitation#2 MW listed in the NJBPU award, 1510 MW for Atlantic Shores 1 and 1148 MW for Ocean Wind 2) = 3594 MW 
OR 
· A different total offshore wind MW injection amount other than the 7500 MW listed in the document and the scenarios listed above. In that case, can PJM provide the details related to the Solicitation #1, #2, and remaining MW injections? 
· The latest PJM RTEP - 2021 NJ Offshore Wind SAA TRANSMISSION Proposal Window Overview (posted on Friday 7/30/2021 states “In addition, the NJBPU will accept proposals that shift some or all of the Solicitation 2 generation to other POIs as part of the objective to cost-effectively achieve NJ’s goal of up to 7,500 MW of OSW generation” do these shifts need to been consistent with the impact of the second solicitation levels discussed above.

The default injection amounts are shown in Table 2 of the Overview document.  The NJBPU is looking to solicit up to 7,500 MW of offshore wind.  This is the “Awarded MW” and not the “Modeled MW” shown in the table.  The NJBPU will accept alternative POIs and injection amounts for Solicitations 2 through 6.  

Are the submitting entities to the NJBPU SAA window now required to submit solutions to address solicitations 2 through 6 transmission needs instead of 3 through 6?
Yes.

Do the redaction requirements for the PJM proposal submittal template detailed in PJM Manual 14F also apply to the BPU supplemental document and other attachments to submitted proposals?
Proposers should follow redaction guidelines in M14F, Section 6.2 for proposals submitted in this window. 


Project Evaluation

What evaluation criteria will PJM use?
PJM will follow M14F generally as well as additional evaluation factors that will be or were posted with the window materials. 

Are any of the Options “optional”?  In other words will PJM consider a complete solution packages that does not have one of the Options, e.g. Option 3?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM and the NJBPU may combine individual proposal options and conceivably parts of individual proposals together with other proposal options in order to achieve a combination of proposals that best addresses all evaluation criteria that will ultimately need to be satisfied through this proposal window.  PJM and the NJBPU are seeking proposals that will fully solve all violations associated with either default or alternate specified POIs and injection amounts. If a proposal does not fully cover Options 1a, 1b, 2 and 3, proposals should specify the severability and contingencies associated with the proposal. Entities are encouraged to submit any options that are believed to satisfy the evaluation criteria.

How will PJM combine separate proposals to form complete solution packages?
In addition to the default POIs and injection amounts, PJM will evaluate any alternative sets of POIs and injection amounts that are being proposed.  Then for each set of injections PJM will ensure that there is at least one complete set of proposals across all Options.  The process by which PJM will combine the separate proposals to form complete solution packages will be based on ensuring all system needs are satisfied.  This will involve consideration of any linkages among proposals specified in the proposals submissions as well as proposals that are not linked and conceivably consider only portions of proposals.

Will PJM provide any guidelines regarding generic default modelling assumptions to be used by proposers that are only examining solutions to a subset of the options, e.g. for proposers only examining option 1a solutions, should they use generic assumption like PJM did when performing its analysis of the default set of POIs?
PJM and the NJBPU recognize that there are many unknown variables to contend with in this window that will make coming up with a set of generic modeling assumptions to cover all possible scenarios extremely challenging for window participants. At the most fundamental level these unknown variables include the ultimate POIs, injection amounts and onshore and offshore transmission solutions.   In order to help guide participants into this process PJM worked with the NJPBU to come up with a set of default injection locations and amounts.  PJM recommends proposers who are unsure of where to begin start with default set of assumptions when coming up with their initial designs.  The NJBPU encourages participants to consider reductions in the total injection amounts as well in order to examine the elimination of potentially expensive transmission requirements.  


Should proposals attempt to address issues that are likely to be uncovered during the future interconnection study associated with the NJ OSW projects?
NJBPU is interested in knowing what the ultimate requirements and related onshore and offshore transmission solutions will look like for the final build-out of up to 7,500 MW of OSW.  To the extent that proposers might offer solutions to mitigate future costs, proposers should provide clear descriptions of those benefits with details of analysis to support the benefits. NJBPU may then select some or all of those transmission solutions to be approved under the PJM State Agreement Approach subject to the evaluation criteria specified in the supporting documents for this window.

Will PJM be changing assumptions during the course of the window and evaluation period, i.e. deactivations, new ISAs, withdrawn units, new baseline upgrades?  If not, how will PJM handle the situation where after the SAA Project is selected it doesn’t work anymore or it is oversized? If so, how will such changes that will be considered be communicated to the participants?

PJM will announce to all participants any required retool evaluations during the course of this window. In order to not add more uncertainty to the evaluation process, PJM will attempt to restrict such retools to two types of changes: major modeling errors and ISA status changes for interconnection requests made prior to November 18, 2020.  After the ultimate solution package is selected and approved, PJM will incorporate it into the regular RTEP baseline and interconnection studies.  PJM will make an announcement to the PJM PC and TEAC listserv of any change in assumptions or updates to the posted material.

What models and procedures should be used to demonstrate the reduction in the need for must-run generation and special operating procedures, extreme weather outages and weather-related multiple unforced outages? Can PJM post a list of such criterion or a base multi-period economic model such as PROMOD which can be used as a baseline to study the impact of solutions be evaluated?

PJM will perform the evaluation per M14F, as well as the additional analysis described in the posted window materials.   NJBPU may perform additional analysis and sensitivities to assess the benefits of the proposals.

If there are incomplete solution packages will PJM hold a second window?
PJM cannot say at this time if it will conduct a second window for the NJ OSW public policy requirements.

What if proposals work for more than one solution package?  
PJM will attempt to identify the solution package (combinations of proposals) that provides the most benefit to NJ while considering all elements listed in the Project Evaluation Criteria.

Can PJM provide general guidelines on how they will consider the many disparate benefits provided by each proposal and solution package?
After performing an initial review of all proposals to ensure they are complete and which ones are linked, PJM will then begin the process of combining proposals to form complete solution packages for the default and alternative sets of POIs and injection amounts.  PJM will evaluate the proposals to ensure there are no unresolved reliability violations associated with these solution packages.  For solutions that satisfy the reliability criteria and meet the public policy requirements, PJM will collaborate with the NJBPU to review all elements listed in the Project Evaluation Criteria to identify the many disparate benefits provided by solution package.     

Please elaborate on the statement in the In the BPU Supplemental SAA Bid Data Collection form that states “[a]n award to build a Qualified Project is contingent upon the successful Applicant obtaining all required local, State and/or Federal permits and/or approvals”.  This doesn’t appear to be how RTEP projects are normally awarded.  If a developer is unable to receive any and all permits is the project then awarded to a ‘back-stop’ project and developer or is a different project and developer chosen through a subsequent RFP?
This statement was removed from the document.

How will PJM and the NJBPU evaluate proposals for upgrades outside of NJ?
The evaluation process for proposal outside of NJ will be the same as those for proposals inside NJ.

What steps and protections will PJM take should the construction of any transmission upgrades selected in this Transmission Proposal Window cause extended outages for any offshore projects selected in the NJBPU’s second and third round solicitations or those with NJ OREC awards?  Does PJM have any mechanisms it can use to protect offshore wind developers should their projects be delayed or otherwise severely impacted by delays in the transmission upgrades selected in this window? 

Risks associated with the timing of the delivery and development of OSW will be a factor that PJM and the NJPBU will consider in evaluating and selecting proposals.

There appears to be a significant possibility of some overlap or close interplay between Network Upgrades ultimately identified in the interconnection agreements to be executed for existing offshore wind project queue positions and the transmission upgrade proposals selected in this window. How will PJM distribute cost allocation for the system upgrades resulting from both the interconnection process and the public policy transmission? For example, to what extent will PJM “retool” the existing interconnection requests? 

The generators for the first two NJ OSW solicitations will be responsible for the network upgrades identified in their ISA.  Retools of the interconnection studies will be performed as necessary consistent with normal interconnection study procedures.  Once the first two solicitations sign an ISA they will be included in the RTEP studies along with their network upgrades.  The outcome of the 2021 NJ OSW SAA window will be a set of baseline upgrades to support solicitations 3 through 6.  Once the 2021 NJ OSW window is concluded and the transmission projects are approved, they will be included in the RTEP.  The costs for the NJ SAA upgrades will be allocated to NJ load customers.   

How should participants align their transmission proposals with the solicitation schedule while waiting for the official generators that are part of the NJBPU solicitation schedule to be announced, e.g. solicitation number 2?  Could there be modifications to the assumptions once the winner of solicitation #2 becomes known?   (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM and NJBPU reserve the right to update the window assumptions as more information regarding the solicitation schedule becomes known. Any update to the window assumptions or posted material will be announced via the PJM PC and TEAC listserv.

Will PJM extend the window once the winner of solicitation #2 becomes known?   (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM is not anticipating a need to extend the window beyond August 13, 2021.  However, the PJM tariff allows the window to be extended and PJM and the NJBPU will make a determination whether this is necessary as the close of the window approaches.

What requirements does PJM/NJBPU have for the qualification of novel technology to be used in candidate offshore grid designs? 
For proposals which include new or non-conventional technology or application of new of non-conventional technology, in addition to the technical performance, PJM will also consider whether the technology is proven for the application as proposed.

Do PJM / BPU have a sense of the scope of additional consulting work for each project submission and the possible cost?  This information will be helpful for project sponsors to budget for the costs of additional studies that they may be responsible for after projects are submitted. 
Proposers will be responsible for all actual costs to evaluate proposals, which may include outside consultants.  PJM cannot provide an estimate at this time, but proposers should expect the evaluation costs to be higher than a typical reliability or market efficiency window due to the complex nature of the window.  Following receipt of proposals, PJM will invoice proposing entities for estimated work to perform the evaluation.

Will PJM be updating the window assumptions if the Market Efficiency 9A is cancelled and to account for recently announced generator deactivations?
PJM is not planning to update the window assumptions and models to account for these types of events.

What is the basis for the 1500 MW limit defined for the single most severe contingency event?
In real time operations the largest single contingency may vary depending on outages and actual system conditions.  For planning purposes for this competitive solicitation, proposal sponsors should consider the largest existing single contingency on the PJM system is 1,500 MW.  This number was based on discussion with real time operations and consideration of future planned generators.  If a sponsor’s proposal results in an increase to the largest single contingency, PJM will evaluate the performance of the project proposal and consider any increase in costs to all PJM customers as a result.


Project Selection

Who will select the project, PJM or NJ?
PJM will perform its evaluation and share its findings with NJBPU. The final decision of selecting which projects to fund will be the decision of NJBPU.

Does PJM plan to award projects to address violations relating to both in-state and out-of-state existing transmission facilities? If so, how will costs be allocated for out-of-state network upgrades?
Yes, PJM requires a set of proposals that resolves all reliability concerns across the PJM footprint that are caused by the addition of the offshore wind units.  Costs for any PJM transmission proposal awarded under this window will be allocated 100% to NJ load customers.   

Will PJM and NJBPU provide information on the weighting of the specific evaluation criteria and minimum thresholds that need to be met for awarding proposals? Are the criteria expected to vary depending on the Option?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)

PJM and NJBPU will not provide a numerical weighting or metric for evaluation criteria.  There are numerous evaluation criteria that PJM and the NJBPU will consider when evaluating the proposals and these evaluation criteria will vary based on the options that the proposal is associated with.  Some of these criteria, such as the reliability criteria, will have minimum thresholds that need to be met.  Other criteria such as flexibility and market value will not have clear thresholds that must be achieved.  Participants are encouraged to provide sufficient responses in their proposal submission to enable PJM and the NJBPU to properly consider all evaluation criteria.  

Will this window involve multi-phase, iterative approach as PJM and the NJBPU attempt to piece to together the multiple proposals to form a winning solution package? (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM may ask proposers for clarification about their proposal; PJM does not foresee the need to conduct additional windows at this time.

What queue projects are considered in the SAA window models?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
In addition to the 7,500 MW of NJ OSW specified in the Overview document, only queue projects with an ISA are modeled. 

How will PJM consider the impacts across disparate planning processes including the SAA window, the RTEP window and the queue?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
The processes will be conducted in parallel.  The SAA window will generally not be impacted by the ongoing RTEP studies but may require a retool if queue resources that entered the queue prior to November 18, 2020 have an ISA status change.  The RTEP will not be impacted by the SAA window until the winning proposals are approved by the PJM Board and incorporated in the RTEP.  Queue projects that enter the queue after November 18, 2020 will be studied using certain to be determined assumptions from the SAA window.  

How are the Capacity Interconnection Rights of this 7500 MW injection set aside? So that other generator interconnection requests don't use this.  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
PJM and the NJPBU are currently working through the terms related to how the CIRs associated with the transmission capability created by the transmission proposals selected from this SAA window will be preserved for and assignable to the NJ generators that come through the PJM Interconnection Queue.  

 
Will PJM provide additional guidance on any evaluation criteria that will be used to assess, and ultimately compare, bids received in this proposal window? 
Proposers should refer to the posted materials for the competitive window and also Manual 14F.  If additional information is made available, it will be added to posted window documents.

What proposal terms are binding once a proposal is submitted? (For instance, to what extent can a bidder negotiate proposal modifications with PJM after being selected?)
PJM will administer the window consistent with the OA and PJM manuals, which do not permit proposers to make modifications to proposals once the project is submitted in a window.    

Can PJM expand on PJM’s comments in the transmission RFP overview that it “reserves the right to update the scope of work associated with this window after the second [NJBPU OREC] solicitation is awarded”? For instance, what scope changes does PJM envision after the NJBPU announces its offshore wind second round solicitation winners? Will scope changes have any impact on submission deadline? 
PJM cannot determine at this time what scope changes might be needed, if any, pending the outcome of the NJBPU second solicitation.  PJM will assess the information at the time of the selection and update stakeholders regarding the window. 

To what extent will PJM consider transmission upgrade proposals in this window that can facilitate potential offshore wind expansions beyond the NJBPU 7.5 GW target by 2035? 
Proposers should refer to the Proposal Window Overview for a description of the evaluation criteria that PJM and NJBPU will consider in evaluating the proposed solutions.  In particular, the ability to expand the proposed solution to accommodate future increases in offshore wind generation above current plans is among the evaluation criteria that listed.  There is no specific weighting or numerical value for the individual criteria.   

Project Designation

What process will be used to designate who constructs the projects?
PJM will follow its Tariff procedures for designation construction responsibility for baseline project. 

What sort of scrutiny will PJM and the NJBPU perform on partnership relationships between generation owners and transmission developers for the purposes of this solicitation?
PJM will perform the due diligence in its review of the Proposing entities consistent with the OA and PJM Manual 14F.

Who will be the entity responsible for implementing the upgrade needs for the existing transmission facilities (such as a transmission line) which are identified as part of Option 1A? Will it be the proposer or the Transmission Owner?    
For Option 1A needs, the same rules that are applied as part of the RTEP competitive window to determine whether upgrades are subject to the competitive process will be applied to this window.

Can PJM provide some guidance on how the change of ownership or interface between the Offshore Wind Farm (OWF) and Transmission Owner (TO) will be defined? More specifically, regarding any facilities on the TO owned platforms/structures that need to be made available to the OWF developers. Examples can be a SCADA and communications room, to patch the OWF communication cables to the communication cable that TO etc.
The entity proposing an offshore wind platform to allow connection of future generation should consider all aspects of the future generator’s operations to ensure their proposal includes capabilities which allow the operation of that generation in a beneficial manner.

Regulatory
 

Will the projects be baseline projects or something else?
The selected projects will be baseline projects where the driver is public policy.

How will the projects be cost allocated?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
The cost will be allocated to NJ load customers, subject to a cost allocation agreed to by the NJBPU to be developed and filed at FERC.

What does the PJM Board approve?  (question posed at May 5, 2021 TEAC)
The PJM Board approves baseline projects, including public policy projects, for inclusion in the RTEP.  The PJM Board approval for any project selected by the NJBPU will be contingent upon a FERC approved cost allocation for the public policy project, pursuant to OA Schedule 6, Section 1.5.9. 


Administrative

Will there be proposal window fees?
PJM will charge developers proposal fees consistent with competitive windows, which will be actual costs with advance billing of estimated costs. 

Can proposing entities submit a proposal as a partnership?
Yes.  All the proposing entities must have prequalified status in order to be designated construction responsibility.

Would New Jersey BPU be willing to meet with prospective proposing entities during the open window?
If an entity would like to meet with the NJBPU, they may contact Joseph DeLosa at Joseph.DeLosa@bpu.nj.gov to schedule a meeting.  Proposers are not required to meet the NJBPU in order to submit a proposal.



Document Revision History

5/10/2021 - V1 -      Original Proposal Window General FAQ posted to the PJM Competitive Planning Process webpage: https://www.pjm.com/planning/competitive-planning-process.aspx.

5/26/2021 – V2
· Responded to four additional FAQs and answered one existing FAQ that was unanswered.

6/4/2021 – V3
· Responded to six additional FAQs and answered one existing FAQ that was unanswered.

7/2/2021 – V4
· Responded to six additional FAQs and deleted four FAQs that were answered in the Economic Evaluation FAQ document.

7/16/2021 – V5
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